
RFP02/2021: River Basin Management Plans for Kosovo 

QUESTION & ANSWERS N°1 – 24.02.2021 
 
 
Q1: Who will be the Contracting Party for the present mandate on the customer side? 

A1: The “Contracting Party” for the work defined in the present RFP will be Skat Consulting 
Kosovo (branch office of Skat Consulting Ltd., St. Gallen, Switzerland). 
 
Q2: What will be the role of SKAT Ltd. in the present mandate and in relation to the Kosovo 
authorities? 

A2: Skat Consulting Ltd., in consortium with the Environment Agency Austria, is the mandated 
implementer of the IWRM-K Program through its Kosovo-based branch office established in 
line with local legislation. As such, it has the overall contract implementation control and quality 
assurance function in the present mandate. More generally, the Program is designed to fun-
damentally improve the capacity and strengthen the role of the Ministry of Economy and Envi-
ronment, and especially the River Basin District Authority, as key partners. Its strategic ap-
proach relies on a close interplay of (technical) capacity and institutional development. 
 
Q3: Which will be the contribution of the Kosovo authorities in data collection, data interpreta-
tion, drafting RBM plans, RBM Programs of Measures, and national methodology papers? How 
many staff (in % full-time equivalent) are approximately assigned by Kosovo authorities to sup-
port the project? 

A3: The primary beneficiary and implementation partner of the Program is the River Basin 
District Authority that will offer a full range of support services (e.g., data collection, review of 
different deliverables, coordination with other relevant planning processes, input to Pro-
grammes of Measures and methodology papers). In addition, a number of institutions will be 
part of the RBMP preparation process through the thematic Working Groups mentioned in the 
RFP. The establishment of these groups is underway and they will be introduced to the se-
lected Contractor right upon signing of contract. Besides their support to the RBMP process, 
the stakeholders are planned to receive considerable capacity development support by the 
Contract as specified in the TORs. 
 
Q4: The footnote on page 10 is unclear to us. How can external experts be engaged for posi-
tions if not through sub-contracting, as individual consultants? Does the upper limit of 25% for 
sub-contracting apply for corporate services only, ie excluding external experts engaged as 
free-lancers? 

A4: If you refer to footnote 11, the indicated percentage (25%) sets the maximum volume of 
work that can be subcontracted to other legal entities (e.g., companies, or other organizations). 
This doesn’t account for any freelancers which may be also part of the team on key or non-key 
positions including in the pool of experts (there is no need for the proposed expert to be com-
pany’s in-house expert, but they can be external, in addition to the possible 25% subcontracted 
legal entities). 
 
Q5: The scope of the possible supplementary monitoring expeditions will depend on the quality 
of available data which we cannot fully appraise at this stage. Do we assume correctly that the 
cost of the supplementary monitoring expeditions and the pilot monitoring programme (ie cost 
of sampling, lab analyses, lab data interpretation reports) will be covered outside of the present 
mandate? 

A5: Yes, that is correct. As indicated in the RFP the supplementary monitoring activities will be 
carried out through different contractual arrangement(s), based on the monitoring plan/design 
proposed by the selected Contractor based on detailed assessment.  



 
Q6: TOR Chap. 1.2.2 mentions the need for close cooperation with a Consultant doing a Water 
Balance Study. Who is the Consultant for this Study? Which is its budget? Which is its timeta-
ble? 

A6: The timeline and other relevant details regarding the water balance study can be found in 
Appendix B of the TORs (page 33). The budget of the study is not a public information. The 
selected Contractor is PointPro Consulting (N. Macedonia) to whom the selected Contractor 
for the RBMPs will be introduced right upon signing of contract. 
 
Q7: TOR Chap. 6 requires the bidder to have experience from at least 2 projects that involve 
the application of the principles of the EU Water Framework Directive and/or the IWRM ap-
proach. In the table below, the requirement seems more restrictive, ie. experience from at least 
2 basin management plans in accordance to EU WFD. Please clarify. 

A7: The requirement of ‘at least 2 projects that involve the application of the principles of the 
EU Water Framework Directive and/or the IWRM approach’ refers to the bidder/company. The 
requirements in the table right below refer to the individual experts and/or the necessary areas 
of expertise. Namely, the requirement of ‘demonstrated experience in preparation of at least 2 
basin management plans in accordance to EU WFD’ refers to the bidder’s proposed Team 
Leader. 
 
Q8: Can project references and staff from a sister company to the bidder (both legal entities 
have an identical ownership) be used in this tender? 

A8: Since RFP02/2021 allows for bids submitted by Joint Ventures (JV), our strong preference 
would be that the indicated sister companies apply as a JV. In such case, they can share the 
references (e.g., in terms of number of relevant projects required by the bidder). The lead 
company in the JV will only need to meet the minimum number of years of previous relevant 
experience (at least 10 years). 

In case for certain reason such JV would not be possible, in order to encourage competition, 
we would consider bids that combine the references and staff of legal entities with identical 
ownership. In such case, the bidder should provide a proof of connection i.e. that the compa-
nies share the same parent company. In addition, the bidder shall inform in their bid how the 
experience and know-how of each of the sister companies is transferred onto the other com-
panies within the same group referring to it in the section on general organizational capability. 
In such situations, the ‘sister’ company will be considered neither a JV member nor a subcon-
tractor of the ‘parent’ company. 


